BOARD OF DIRECTORS
METROPOLITAN DOMESTIC WATER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA

January 10, 2000

** Board Room**
Metropolitan Domestic Water Improvement District
6265 N. La Cafiada Drive
Tucson, AZ 85704

MINUTES

Board Members Present: Marlene Wright, Chair
Pete Schlegel, Vice-Chair
Jim Doyle, Member
Dennis Polley, Member
Sam Ray, Member

District Staff: Mark R. Stratton, General Manager
Phil Higdon, Legal Counsel
Warren Tenney, Clerk of the Board

I. Call to Order and Roll Call

Sam Ray, Chair of the Board of Directors of the Metropolitan Domestic Water Improvement
District (District), called the Board meeting to order at 5:33 p.m. Jim Doyle, Dennis Polley, Pete
Schlegel and Marlene Wright were present.

Executive Session

Pete Schlegel made a motion for the Board of Directors to move to Executive Session. Mr.
Polley seconded the motion and it passed unanimously. The Board went into Executive Session
at 5:34 p.m.

Executive Session pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3) (consultation for legal advice with the
attorney or attorneys of the District) and/or pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(4) regarding the
following:

A. Possible Resolution of Completion Delay of Martin C. Lang General
Contractor, Inc., Contract for the New District Office and Maintenance
Building.



Metropolitan Domestic Water Improvement District
Board of Directors Meeting

January 10, 2000

Page 2

Regular Session

Sam Ray, Chair of the Board of Directors of the Metropolitan Domestic Water Improvement
District (District) called the Board meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. Jim Doyle, Dennis Polley, Pete
Schlegel and Marlene Wright were present.

I1. Presentation to Karson Gard — Employee of the Year

Mr. Ray presented the Employee of the Year award to Karson Gard, Utility Maintenance
Worker. Mr. Ray commended Mr. Gard on his recognition as the District’s employee of the
year.

I11. General Comments from the Public

There were no comments from the public.

IV. Consent Agenda

Approval of Minutes — December 13, 1999 Board Meeting.

Ratification of Billing Adjustments.

Approval of Water Service Agreement for Casas Adobes Corporate Park.
Approval of Water Service Agreement for the Gardner Residence Line
Extension.

SOwp

Ms. Wright made a motion to accept and approve the consent agenda as presented. Mr. Polley
seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.

V. General Business — Items for Discussion and Possible Action

A, Election of Chair and Vice-Chair for the Board of Directors.
Mr. Ray requested nominations for the election of Chair and Vice-Chair.

Mr. Schlegel asked Legal Counsel if the statutes state that the Board may change the chair or
must change the chair. Phil Higdon, Legal Counsel, responded that the statutes have no specific
requirement as to change, it only requires that a chair must be elected annually.

Mr. Polley nominated Marlene Wright to serve as Chair of the Board and Mr. Doyle seconded
the motion. Mr. Ray declared nominations for the Chair to be closed and called for a vote on the
motion. The motion to appoint Marlene Wright as Chair of the Board passed 4-0 with Mr. Ray,
Mr. Doyle, Mr. Polley and Mr. Schlegel approving. Ms. Wright abstained from the vote.

Ms. Wright nominated Pete Schlegel to serve as Vice-Chair of the Board and Mr. Polley
seconded the nomination. Mr. Ray declared the nomination for the vice-chair closed and called



Metropolitan Domestic Water Improvement District
Board of Directors Meeting

January 10, 2000

Page 3

for a vote on the motion. The motion to elect Mr. Schlegel as Vice-Chair of the Board passed
unanimously.

Mr. Ray turned the gavel over to Ms. Wright and congratulated her on her election. Ms. Wright
served as Chair of the Board for the remainder of the meeting.

Mr. Schlegel thanked Mr. Ray and Ms. Wright for their performance as Chair and Vice-Chair of
the Board for the last year.

B. Financial Issues.

Mike Land, Chief Financial Officer, stated that the District is now fully functional using the new
MIP accounting software and pointed out that the budget summary and check register were
prepared using this software. He stated that meter installations were down for the last few
months but staff expects increases in installations this year.

Mr. Schlegel asked how the monies received for the collection services for Pima County
Wastewater was listed on the budget summary. Mr. Land explained that those monies are not
listed as revenue but as a receivable amount that 1s collected and forwarded to Pima County and
in turn Pima County issues a check to the District that is then listed as revenue.

Ms. Wright asked for clarification for some of the expenditures listed on the check summary.
Mr. Land provided an explanation for each entry before the meeting ended.

B. Direction to Staff Regarding Proposed Rate Adjustment and Scheduling of a
Public Hearing.

Mr. Stratton explained that staff prepared a report to provide pertinent information towards rate
and fee increases in anticipation of the proposed rate hearing as noticed in the 1997 bond
election. He stated the intent of this agenda item was to have a public hearing set and then
schedule a Board study session to discuss all issues related to rate and fee increases. Mr. Stratton
said that the public rate hearing needed to be scheduled to afford time for notification to
ratepayers through the media and newsletters and not miss the target date of March 1, 2000 that
was proposed during the rate process of last year.

Mr. Polley stated that the District’s approach to get notification to the ratepayers is sound
practice.

Mr. Ray made a motion to schedule a public hearing for February 22, 2000 at 7:00 p.m. for the
purpose of discussing the proposal of a 4% increase in the water rates and other possible changes
in the District’s fees to be held at the District offices and Mr. Polley seconded the motion.

Mr. Ray said that at the time of the bond hearing, the Board found it necessary to implement
yearly increases and this would be the third of those increases and customers need to be
reminded of those discussions.



Metropolitan Domestic Water Improvement District
Board of Directors Meeting

January 10, 2000

Page 4

Ms. Wright asked about the possibility of recouping the water used by fire departments for
hydrant flushing by utilizing tanker trucks. Mr. Stratton replied that he has had discussions with
representatives from Rural Metro and Northwest Fire Districts regarding unaccounted water
usage, potential damage to the infrastructure and the proper way to open and close valves. He
stated that the discussions enlightened the representatives as to the regulatory requirements that
governed the District. Mr. Stratton stated that there were new environmental issues including
requirement of a national pollution discharge permit that would include water coming from fire
hydrants and discharge from wells. He stated that the issues regarding ADWR requirements on
unaccounted for water usage, loss of compensation, the cost to produce and boost water into the
system were discussed. Mr. Stratton told the Board that these fire district representatives would
want to be present at a Board study session to discuss the impact of any fees with the Board.

Ms. Wright called for a vote on the motion to schedule a public hearing for February 22, 200 at
the District office for the purpose of discussing a rate increase. The motion passed unanimously.

The Board scheduled a Board Study Session for January 24, 2000 at 5:30 p.m. to discuss issues
relating to any rate and fee increases.

Mr. Schlegel requested that staff be prepared to justify any rate increases other than the 4% bond
increase required by the bond issuance. Mr. Stratton asked if the Board was requesting
alternatives including no increase or smaller increases as opposed to the 4% increase.

Mr. Land distributed a handout detailing the rate increases for the Capital Improvement Program
versus the general operating expenses. Mr. Stratton noted that the last increase for operating and
maintenance expense was in 1995 and staff is instructed to limit expenditures. He indicated, for
example, that if vehicles are needed for the District, then staff decreases the amount requested
for consultants. Staff tries to keep the total amount of monies expended the same by adjusting
the requests. Ms. Wright asked if staff could prepare a flow chart to compare consultation
charges for this year to previous years and include distinctions when the monies are bond funded.

Mr. Polley asked if there are covenants included in the bonds. Mr. Land responded that there are
three ratios of covenants, 1.2% senior debt; 2.5% junior debt; and 1.12% Tucson settlement. If
these covenants are not met, the District has sixty days to rectify the situation or else be found in
default. Mr. Polley stated that everyone needs to be cognizant that the District might have
onetime expenses that were not anticipated and suggested that the District needs to be aware of
the need to have to retire bonds by covenant in order to maintain the ratio and not get penalized.

D. Possible Resolution of Completion Delay of Martin C. Lang General
Contractor, Inc., Contract for the New District Office and Maintenance
Buildings.

Mr. Ray made a motion to accept the mediation proceedings as completed on behalf of the Board
for the Martin C. Lang settlement. Mr. Polley seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.



Metropolitan Domestic Water Improvement District
Board of Directors Meeting

January 10, 2000

Page 5

E. Award of the Construction for the L.a Cholla Blvd. Transmission Main —
Phase L.

Mr. Polley asked if the Borderland Construction bid included their estimated for boring. Charlie
Maish, District Engineer, responded that all the bids included estimates for boring.

Mr. Schlegel asked about the 33% difference in the pricing of bids and if that was unusual. Mr.
Maish replied that the construction environment is very busy and some contractors bid a large
amount in the event they are awarded the bid. Mr. Maish said that the low bids are very close to
the real value of the work projects. Mr. Doyle stated he would be concerned if the District
engineers estimated these projects much higher than the lower bids. He has seen projects that are
sometimes $3-5 million different.

Mr. Schlegel made a motion to award the construction contract for La Cholla Boulevard
Transmission Main — Phase 1 (M-96-12A) to Don Kelly Construction in the amount of
$1,764,960. He also made a motion to authorize the General Manager to approve the following
changes to the construction contract: 1) allocate additional funding a cumulative amount not to
exceed $50,000 and 2) increase the original construction contract term a cumulative amount not
to exceed sixty (60) calendar days and any changes in excess of the above limits will be
submitted to the Board of Directors for approval. Mr. Polley seconded the motion.

Mr. Ray expressed his concemn about lack of research and preparation on issues such as the
pygmy owl and having contracts come back to the Board of Directors for approval. Mr. Maish
replied that this contract would not be presented to the Board for further approval that staff has
taken steps to address any delays regarding jack and boring procedures. He further stated that if
the corps of engineers decide that the jack and bore option is not needed, those monies would not
be expended. Mr. Maish stated that the decisions regarding the pygmy own and the jack and
bore option would not delay construction.

Mr. Schlegel requested that the District implement boiler-plate contracts to include standard
language regarding rates and General Manager’s control. Mr. Stratton responded that he would
have staff and legal counsel investigate that possibility.

Ms. Wright asked that the Board be notified if there is any court rulings regarding pygmy owls
and thanked the staff for including the bidders signature list with the staff reports. Ms. Wright
asked why there was no pre-bid conference on this item. Mr. Maish replied that these bids had
already commenced when the issue was raised regarding the pygmy owl. He indicated that staff
was advised that they did not have to obtain permits for this type of work; however, legal counsel
advised staff to obtain permits.

Ms. Wright called for a vote on the motion to award the construction contract for the La Cholla
Boulevard Transmission Main — Phase I to Don Kelley Construction in the amount of $1,764,960
and to authorize the General Manager to approve changes to the construction contract. The
motion passed unanimously.



Metropolitan Domestic Water Improvement District
Board of Directors Meeting

January 10, 2000

Page 6

F. Award and Approval of Contract for Maintenance & Painting of Storage
Tanks.

Mr. Ray made a motion to award and approve the storage tank maintenance contract for the
Fiscal Year 1999-2000 with Rash Tank Painting, Inc., for an amount of $31,788, plus welding
and pit coating charges, not-to-exceed $45,000. Mr. Schlegel seconded the motion.

Ms. Wright noted that the welding costs are a large discrepancy with one company bid $100 per
hour and the other bid $45 per hour. Steve Dean, Utility Superintendent, replied that staff could
ask to modify the welding costs. Also, often staff performs the welding so that the welding
performed is not a large portion of what the work to do. Ms. Wright stated that it could be
possible that the contract would be for only $31,788. Mr. Dean replied that was the cost of last
year’s contract.

Ms. Wright called for a vote on the motion to award and approve the storage tank maintenance
contract for the fiscal year 1999-200 with Rash Tank Painting, Inc. The motion passed

unanimously.
G. Consideration of Electrician Position.

Mr. Stratton told the Board that this was a request from the Utility Division based on their
identifying a need for a qualified electrician to bring the District into compliance with
established electrical codes. He said at present the District does not have qualified in-house staff
certified as an electrician and that the cost for contracting out this work is substantially
prohibitive based on the amount of work that needs to be performed. He stated that the well and
booster sites have antiquated panels that need to be updated to meet code and suggested that
some of the electrician position salary can be provided from the funds budgeted for the telemetry
system. Mr. Dean added that the District’s aging electrical infrastructure does not meet current
electrical code and the newly installed telemetry system required trained personnel and at present
there is no one on staff that is qualified to perform this task.

Mr. Polley made a motion to approve the position of Electrician with a salary range of $31,894 -
$44,790 with funds to be contributed from the telemetry CIP budget until such time as those
funds are no longer available. Mr. Schlegel seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.

Mr. Doyle pointed out that the job description’s lifting requirements should be made more
appropriate. Warren Tenney, Assistant to the General Manager, stated that he would revise that
part of the job description.

H. Legislative Issues.
Mr. Stratton outlined a brief description of some legislative issues being presented for this year’s

session. He stated that at this time, there is nothing that will impact the District either positively
or negatively. He stated that staff and lobbyists will track and monitor introduced bills and that



Metropolitan Domestic Water Improvement District
Board of Directors Meeting

January 10, 2000

Page 7

the Board members would be updated on a routine basis. Mr. Stratton said that no action needed
to be taken on this agenda item unless a Board member had questions.

VIII. General Manager’s Report

Mr. Stratton indicated that he had not prepared a written General Manager’s report since the
main items were covered in tonight’s agenda and not much action took place because of the
Holiday season. Mr. Stratton stated that the District was Y2K compliant and staff was present at
the District office on December 31, 1999 in the event of an emergency, but there were no
incidents.

Mr. Stratton said he has scheduled a meeting with Dennis Rule of Tucson Water to discuss a
proposed effluent agreement. He will keep the Board apprised of any developments. Mr.
Stratton stated that Tucson Water had also presented draft agreements to the Town of Marana
and the Town of Oro Valley. If and when these contract were finalized, all parties would meet at
the same time to ascertain everyone was getting the same agreement. He cautioned that
negotiations between the City of Tucson and Pima County regarding effluent were still ongoing
and he was not sure of the impact any settlement would have on these agreements.

Mr. Land reported to the Board that he had answers to their questions regarding the issuance of
checks during the financial report. He said that the check for $200 to Southern Truck was for the
transferring of a light bar; $420 to SAHBA was for annual membership dues, and the check
issued to WITSCF was to the Wisconsin Trust Fund on behalf of child support payments for a
District employee. He further stated that the District might have funds available in the Municipal
Property Corporation monies that could be used to purchase a sound system.

IX. Legal Counsel’s Report

Phil Higdon, Legal Counsel, said regarding the status of the NAC negotiations, he contacted
Terry Esser, attorney for NAC and advised him to identify all issues in dispute. He is still
waiting response from Mr. Esser.

Mr. Ray asked a member of the audience (I am trying to find out Reb’s real name) if there is any
update on the annexation process in the Metro-Hub service area. (Reb) answered that each sub-
area within the Metro-Hub service area was in the process of appointing water representatives.
After all these representatives are identified, they will set up a meeting to discuss their options.
He indicated that the end result of these meetings will be to annex into the District.

Mr. Stratton stated that the radon rule comments are due by February 4, 2000 and that he and Mr.

Hill are working with the WestCAS Safe Drinking Water Task Force to submit 10 pages in
comments. He indicated that a copy of the comment letter will be provided to the Board.

X. Future Meeting Dates; Future Agenda Items



Metropolitan Domestic Water Improvement District
Board of Directors Meeting

January 10, 2000

Page 8

The next regular scheduled Board Meeting 1s Monday, February 14, 2000 at 6:00 p.m. The next
Board Study Session is January 24, 2000 at 5:30 p.m.

Ms. Wright asked for an update on the well maintenance contract with Far West Pump, Inc.

XI. Adjournment

The meeting was adjourned at 7:15 p.m.

=
Marlene Wright, W Board

Ll L]

Clerk f}fbé Board




